
ABABABAB    
CHILDREN AND LIFELONG LEARNING SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

WEDNESDAY 3 DECEMBER 2008 
7.00 PM 
 

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall 
 
 
 

AGENDA  

 Page No 

 
1. Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 
 

 

 At this point Members must declare whether they have an interest, whether 
personal or prejudicial, in any of the items on the agenda. Members must 
also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in relation to any 
items under consideration. 

 

 

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 22 October 2008 
 

1  

4. Werrington Primary School Council 
 

7  

 To consider and comment on a presentation from the School Council on its 
achievements and to take questions from the School Council 
 

 

5. National Healthy Schools Programme 
 

9  

 To consider and comment on a report on the PSHE programme for Primary 
Schools 

 

6. The Annual Review of Peterborough's Children and Young People Plan 
 

15  

 To appraise the Scrutiny Panel of the review process for the Plan  
7. Children's Trust - Overview of Performance 

 
19  

 To consider and comment on a report on the overview of the performance of 
the Children’s Trust 
 

 

8. Feedback and Update Report 
 

23  

 Standard report providing feedback on issues raised at previous meetings of 
the Panel 
 

 

9. Executive Decisions 
 

25  

 To note and consider any Executive Decisions taken since the last meeting 
that are relevant to the remit of this Panel 
 

 

Public Document Pack



2 

10. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 

29  

 To consider the latest version of the Forward Plan 
 
 

 

11. Work Programme 
 

43  

 To agree the current work programme  
 

 

12. Date of next meeting 
 

 

 Wednesday 14 January 2009 in the Bourges & Viersen Rooms  
 

 

 
 

 

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact  on 
01733 452238 as soon as possible. 
 

 
 

Committee Members: 
 

Councillors: I Walsh (Chairman), S Day (Vice-Chairman), S Allen, F Benton, N Khan, B Saltmarsh, 
J Wilkinson, D Fower, Elbourne, Kirkbride, O’Connor and Smith 

 
Substitutes: Councillors: C Burton, J R Fox and Z Hussain 

 
Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Lindsay Tomlinson, Governance 
Support Officer on telephone 01733 452238 or by email – lindsay.tomlinson@peterborough.gov.uk 

 
 



  

 AB 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE CHILDREN & LIFELONG LEARNING SCRUTINY 
PANEL HELD IN THE BOURGES & VIERSEN COMMITTEE ROOM, TOWN HALL, 

PETERBOROUGH  
 

22 OCTOBER 2008 
 

Present: Councillors Walsh (Chairman), Allen, C Burton, Benton, Khan, Saltmarsh and 
Wilkinson 
 

Co-opted 
Members 
 

Maggie Kirkbride 
Frank Smith 

Parent Governor Representative 
 

Officers in 
Attendance: 

John Richards 
Mel Collins 
Elaine Fulton 
Jonathan Lewis 
Maureen Phillips 
Stephen Sutherland 
Jenny Spratt 
Gary Perkins 
Carol Archer 
Brian Howard 
Prity Patel 
Paulina Ford 
Lindsay Tomlinson 
 

Executive Director of Children’s Services 
Assistant Director, Learning & Skills 
Assistant Director, Commissioning and Performance 
Assistant Director, Resources 
Assistant Director, Families and Communities 
Principal Lawyer 
Head of Early Years and Childcare Services 
Head of Schools (Primary) 
Head of Schools (Secondary) 
Secondary Schools Phase Project Manager 
Principal Lawyer 
Performance Scrutiny and Research Officer    
Governance Support Officer 
 

 
1. Apologies 
 

Apologies were received from Councillor S Day. Councillor C Burton attended as substitute. 
 

2. Declarations 
 
 Councillor Walsh declared a non-prejudicial interest in agenda item 7, Secondary Schools 

Review Phase 2 – South of the City by virtue of her role as a governor of Stanground College. 
 
3. Minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2008 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2008 were approved. 
 

4. Children’s Trust Arrangements 
 
Peterborough’s Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership (CYPSP) had been 
established in January 2005 as the local vehicle delivering the Children Act ‘duty to 
cooperate’. The members of the Partnership had worked together to develop the framework 
for children’s trust arrangements in Peterborough and its implementation in line with the 
statutory requirement to have the Children’s Trust in place by 2008. 
 
Peterborough’s Children’s Trust had been established in April 2008, governed by a 
Memorandum of Agreement which set out partnership and collaborative working 
arrangements. The Children’s Trust Partnership Board would be supported by a number of 
sub-groups to maximise the impact on outcomes for children, young people and families in the 
city.  The Memorandum of Agreement stated that the partners would bring together their staff, 

1



  

funding and other assets in order to improve children and young people’s wellbeing.  It 
established scope for the pooling of funds in the future to accelerate the delivery of the Trust’s 
priorities and better outcomes for children and young people. 
 
Central to the duties of the Children’s Trust Partnership were the joint assessment of needs 
across the city, identification of key priorities, joint decisions on the use of funds, staff and 
other assets and shared ownership and interrogation of performance against key priorities and 
targets – the elements of ‘joint commissioning’. The Children’s Trust Partnership was 
supported in its key strategic functions by the Commissioning and Performance Division within 
the city council’s Children’s Services department. A performance management framework and 
supporting partnership structure was required that would enable the Children’s Trust 
Partnership to demonstrate a real impact on the priority outcomes articulated in the Children 
and Young People Plan and Local Area Agreement.  
 
A key part of the work was to develop the role of the Children and Lifelong Learning Scrutiny 
Panel in supporting and scrutinising the work of the Children’s Trust Partnership.  It was 
proposed that a series of reports be presented to future Scrutiny Panel meetings, focusing on 
key priority areas and interrogating the strategy and actions in place or proposed for each 
area of priority or poor performance.   
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• There is no mention of how inequalities will be tackled. 

• This is fundamental to our work – in each of the 5 outcomes we can establish where 
there are inequalities and show plans to tackle them.  

• Delivery is key – how do we know we are narrowing the gap? 

• A later report on the agenda will show statistical data for educational achievement. We 
are committed to showing through the performance management framework how the 
gap is being narrowed. 

• It is the role of the Scrutiny Panel to monitor and scrutinise this issue. 

• Has the Trust met yet? If so, what decisions have been made? 

• There have been 4 meetings so far this year. The minutes of the meetings can be 
shared with the Scrutiny Panel. 

• The Trust has been invaluable in helping keep momentum for the integrated service for 
disabled children. It has helped agree a way forward and formed a shadow 
management board. 

• What is being done to encourage GPS to become engaged with the Trust? 

• We have met with GPs involved in practice based commissioning to talk to them about 
the Trust. 

• Is there any possibility of changing the name? 

• It can be called whatever the Trust decides, so long as it is clear that whatever it is 
called, it is our statutory children’s trust. Any suggestions from Panel members of 
alternative names can be considered by the Trust. 

 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Panel noted the report and agreed that the Scrutiny Panel members will receive for 
information purposes the minutes of the meetings of the Children’s Trust. 
 

5. The Engagement of Children and Young People in Peterborough 
 

Engagement was about providing children and young people with the means to have an input 
into decisions that affected their lives, giving them an opportunity and outlet for their view and 
to ensure that they were used in a meaningful way to shape the provision offered to them. In 
order to promote sustainable engagement, it was important that the results of engagement 

2



  

and consultation activities were reported back to those children and young people who were 
involved. 
 

Children and young people in Peterborough had the opportunity to be involved in a range of 
engagement initiatives including: 
 

• School Councils  

• The Youth Council  

• The Children in Care Council  

• Local Democracy Week 

• UK Youth Parliament 

• Young People’s Interview Panels 

• Youth Bank  

• Children and Young People Plan consultation  
 
Children’s Services was currently assessed through the Annual Performance Assessment 
(APA) which provided scores against each of the ‘Every Child Matters’ outcome areas, one of 
which was ‘Make a Positive Contribution’. The engagement of children and young people was 
a key element that was assessed under ‘Make a Positive Contribution’, and the many 
innovative engagement opportunities offered were central in contributing to the 3-star (good) 
rating received for this area in the 2007 assessment.  
 
Recently, Ofsted had published their TELLUS3 survey, a major national survey of children 
currently in school years 6, 8 and 10. The results concerning engagement were very positive. 
33% of young people had said that they thought young people’s views were listened to in 
decisions in the local area, compared to only 26% nationally. Similarly, 63% of young people 
responding had said that they thought their views were listened to in the running of their 
school, compared to 59% nationally.  
 
In order to maintain and develop the delivery of engagement activity there needed to be a 
stronger strategic framework for engagement. To address this, a revised Engagement 
Strategy was being developed in collaboration with a range of partner organisations who 
worked with children and young people.  
 
The strategy aimed to increase and widen genuine participation of children and young people 
in the design, delivery and evaluation of services, through a co-ordinated approach with clear 
objectives: 
 

• To promote a coordinated approach to all engagement children and young people’s 
services within the city. 

• To ensure that the engagement of children and young people is of a high quality and 
has a clear and measurable impact. 

• To ensure vulnerable and hard to reach children and young people have an 
opportunity to engage in decisions that affect their lives. 

• To support practitioners and everyone who works with children and young people to 
develop the right skills and knowledge to support positive engagement. 

• To implement engagement opportunities that meet the needs of children and young 
people and provide positive activities that allow children and young people to shape 
the services they receive. 

 
It was intended that the delivery of this strategy be monitored by the Children’s Trust 
Partnership Board and its supporting partnerships. 
 
The Scrutiny Panel welcomed to its meeting three young people who were involved in various 
initiatives around the engagement of children and young people including work on anti-
bullying awareness, Total Respect training and the Children in Care Council. The Panel 

3



  

members asked the young people about the work they were involved in, and expressed their 
thanks and congratulations to them for their presentation.  
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Panel noted the report. 

 
6. Report on 2008 Examination Data from the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS) to Key 
 Stage 4 (KS4) 
   

The Scrutiny Panel received unvalidated examination data for Key Stages 1 to 4.  
 
Key highlights were as follows:  

• For the first time in four years there had been some improvements in KS1 results 
 overall. 

• Early un-validated KS2 data for English showed a 1% increase on the previous year  

• In 2008 there had been major problems nationally regarding the marking of KS3 
tests and data was still incomplete and un-validated. No KS3 data had been 
released nationally to date. 

• Un-validated and incomplete KS3 data revealed increases in Level 5 English and 
maths on the previous year. 

• There had been a 4% increase in writing outcomes. 

• In KS 4 there had been an increase in 2008 in 5+A*-C GCSEs (60%) and 5+A*-C 
GCSEs including English and maths (40%) by 4% and 3% respectively.  

Three schools, Bushfield, Voyager and St John Fisher, had been identified as National 
Challenge Schools and would receive additional support and funding. 

The report highlighted a number of interventions and strategies to improve outcomes further in 
all Key Stages. 

Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 

• It seems that we are good at making improvements where we have targets, but it 
appears that this can lead us to miss out elsewhere. For example improvement for 
girls in Key Stage 1 has dipped. 

• We have looked at this issue and we are comparing the 2008 cohort of girls with the 
2007 cohort which was very high achieving. The 2008 cohort compare favourably 
with 2006 and made as much progress from Reception to Year 6. 

• There used to be some concern about the transition from primary school to 
secondary school with boys from certain areas being put in lower classes because of 
where they come from – is that still happening? 

• So far as we are aware this does not happen – primary and secondary schools work 
very closely on each individual student, looking at their needs and strengths. Work is 
done to ensure that each student is put into the correct place and schools will review 
placements very early in the year to ensure no mistakes have been made. 

• Where will the money come from for the Graduate Learner in day care initiative? 

• The scheme is fully funded – training is paid for along with a bursary to the day care 
setting to pay for the individual’s release. 

• What is being done to retain good secondary school teachers and how are poor 
performing teachers dealt with? 

• We are working closely with the Head of Human Resources looking at recruitment 
and retention of secondary school teachers. We work closely with school leaders in 
monitoring the quality of staff and teaching and we are robust in our management of 
this. 

 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Panel noted the report. 

4



  

7. Secondary Schools Review Phase 2 – South of the City 
 
Bushfield Community College had been categorised in June 2008 as a National Challenge 
school by the DCSF. This meant that it had failed to meet the 5 A*-C GCSE floor target of 
30% including English and Maths. The Chair of Governors and Principal of Bushfield 
Community College had written to the Executive Director of Children’s Services expressing 
the governors’ desire to convert the school to Academy status with effect from 1 September 
2009, working with the Ormiston Education Trust as sponsor. 
 
Peterborough City Council was presently consulting with the DCSF and Partnerships for 
Schools about the detailed requirements and implications of applying to convert Bushfield 
School to an Academy with effect from 1 September 2009 in its existing buildings.  
 
Partnerships for Schools, who managed the Building Schools for the Future (BSF) programme 
had completed a consultation during summer 2008 to review the management of BSF waves 
7 -15 (this included Stanground College and Orton Longueville School). The consultation had 
resulted in all authorities in waves 7 - 15 being invited to submit a revised Expression of 
Interest by 29 November 2008. 
 
Observations and questions were raised and discussed including: 
 

• What are the timescales for the delivery of the Orton Longueville and Stanground 
College proposals? 

• We are looking at September 2012 to September 2013 for those schools. 

• What did we do wrong last time to not catch the earlier wave, and can we be sure we 
will catch this wave? 

• We were always in wave 7 when BSF was announced. We were assessed against a 
set of criteria driven by attainment. We applied in April 2008 to get into wave 6A. 
Those authorities who succeeded in getting into 6A succeeded on the basis of 
deprivation. Based on the feedback we have now had we believe we are now in a 
position to progress faster.  

• Will Stanground College be rebuilt or refurbished? 

• It will be rebuilt. 

• It is disappointing to note that three of the schools in the south of the city are not 
doing well. We need to do something very quickly to improve attainment. 

• Orton Longueville School was subject to a Notice to Improve but came out of that in 
the shortest possible time and we have seen a noticeable improvement in their 
outcomes. Stanground College recently had a very good OFSTED visit and is 
expected to come out of its Notice to Improve. Both schools are to be commended for 
the improvements they have made. Bushfield College faced a challenging Year 11 
cohort in 2008 – we are working with the head teacher looking at the details of the 
schools’ results. There is no fundamental failure of the school – until this year there 
had been real improvement sin all areas. We are working hard with governors, staff 
and the community to improve the situation. 

 
 ACTION AGREED 
 

The Panel noted the report. 
 

8. Executive Decisions 
 
The Panel considered the following Executive Decision made since the last meeting: 
 

• Appointment of LEA Governor to Welbourne Primary School 

• Appointment of LEA Governor to St Botolph's Primary School 

• Appointment of LEA Governor to Paston Ridings Primary School 

5



  

• Petition – Charteris Play Centre 

• Changes to Arrangements for 16-19 Education and Training 

• Appointment of LEA Governor to Norwood Primary School 
 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Panel noted the report. 
 

9. Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 
 The Panel received the latest version of the Council’s Forward Plan, containing key 
 decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
 Members would make during the course of the following four months.  Members were 
 invited to comment on the Plan and, where appropriate, identify any relevant areas for 
 inclusion in the Panel’s work programme.  

 
ACTION AGREED 
 
The Panel noted the Forward Plan. 
 

10. Work Programme 
 

Members considered the Panel’s Work Programme for 2008/2009. 
 

ACTION AGREED 
 
The Panel approved the current work programme subject to the inclusion at the December 
meeting of a report on the performance review of the Children’s Trust. 
 

13. Date of Next Meeting 
 

Wednesday 3 December 2008 at 7pm in the Bourges and Viersen Room. 
 
 
 

The meeting began at 7pm and ended at 8.53pm 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

6



CHILDREN AND LIFELONG LEARNING SCRUTINY PANEL Agenda Item 
No. 4 
 

3 DECEMBER 2008 Public Report 
 

Report of the Executive Director of Strategic Resources                                     
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Performance Scrutiny and Research Officer 
Contact Details - 01733 452508 
 

 
WERRINGTON PRIMARY SCHOOL COUNCIL 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To raise awareness of the activities and achievements of Werrington Primary School Council 
 
2. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL 

AREA AGREEMENT 
 
2.1 Links to the Corporate Plan priorities of make Peterborough a better place in which to live and 

work and provide high quality opportunities for learning and ensuring children are healthy and 
safe. 

 
2.2 Links into the Engaging Children and Young People Strategy. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 At the Panel’s group representatives meeting held on 4 November 2008 it was suggested 
 that Werrington Primary School Council should be invited to attend a meeting of the panel. This 
 would  allow members of the Panel to hear directly from the young people about the activities 
 and achievements of their School Council.    It would also give the young people an 
 opportunity to  speak directly  to Councillors and ask them about their roles and how the Council 
 works. 
  
4. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 
5.1 The Panel is asked to consider and comment on the information presented to them by 

Werrington Primary School Council and take questions from the School Council. 
 
6 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 
1985 

  
 None 
 

7



8

This page is intentionally left blank



CHILDREN AND LIFELONG LEARNING 
SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Agenda Item No. 5 

3 DECEMBER 2008 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services                                     
 
Report Author – Gaynor Mansell 
Contact Details – 01733 863896  
 

NATIONAL HEALTHY SCHOOLS PROGRAMME 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

• To inform members of the proposed statutory nature of PSHE 

• To describe the programme for SRE already within Peterborough Primary schools’ 
curriculum 

 
2. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL 

AREA AGREEMENT 
 

It is expected that statutory Personal, Social, Health and Emotional (PSHE) programmes will help 
to tackle important public health concerns, such as high teenage pregnancy rates and increasing 
Sexually Transmitted Infection (STI) rates. Embedding Sex and Relationships Education (SRE) 
from an early age is seen as crucial to the success of the Teenage Pregnancy strategy. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 

PSHE is currently positioned within the non-statutory education framework. It is described by the 
Qualifications and Curriculum Authority (QCA) as helping to give children and young people the 
knowledge, skills and understanding they need to lead confident, healthy and independent lives. 
It is one of the four themes of the National Healthy Schools programme. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 

• There is a need, both nationally and locally, for PSHE, and particularly school-based SRE, to 
be given priority within the school curriculum. 

• SRE should be delivered by adequately trained staff. 

• There are concerns nationally about the possible content of SRE for young children.  

• Peterborough schools are well placed to work confidently, within a statutory framework, as a 
robust PSHE programme is already in place. 

• Peterborough is currently embarking on training the sixth cohort of teachers and nurses within 
the national PSHE Continual Professional Development (CPD) programme. 

 
5. IMPLICATIONS 
 

The report has implication city wide as it is relevant to all schools and the Pupil Referral Service. 
 
6. CONSULTATION 
 

Consultation with parents and pupils will take place via schools and the Primary Pupil Referral 
Unit when final QCA guidance is released. 

 
 
 
 

9



7. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 

Council Members will be fully informed of the PSHE programme for Primary Schools when 
guidance is released and consultation has taken place. It is hoped that Members will give support 
and approval to the SRE programme for Peterborough’s Primary Schools. 

 
8. NEXT STEPS 
 

This report aims to introduce the SRE curriculum to Members. The next step is to present the 
new SRE curriculum to Members once the QCA documents are released and discuss with 
members how SRE will be delivered in Peterborough’s schools and the Primary PRU. The PHSE 
team will support schools and the Primary PRU to monitor effectiveness of the programme in 
terms of outcomes. It is hoped that selected schools and the Primary PRU will be invited to 
Scrutiny to discuss the effectiveness of the SRE curriculum. 
 

 
9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
               Peterborough SRE Guidance and Framework 

  
 
10. APPENDICES 
 
 SRE Entitlement Curriculum. 

10



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 A
 -
 T
h
e
 E
n
ti
tl
e
m
e
n
t 
C
u
rr
ic
u
lu
m
 f
o
r 
S
e
x
 a
n
d
 R
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
s
 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 K
e
y
 S
ta
g
e
 1
(Y
e
a
r1
/2
) 

S
ci

en
ce

 C
ur

ric
ul

um
 

•
 

fin
d 

ou
t a

bo
ut

 a
nd

 id
en

tif
y 

so
m

e 
fe

at
ur

es
 o

f l
iv

in
g 

th
in

gs
, o

bj
ec

ts
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

s 
th

ey
 o

bs
er

ve
 

 

K
no

w
le

dg
e 

(P
S

H
E

) 
S

ki
lls

 (
P

S
H

E
) 

A
tti

tu
de

s 
(P

S
H

E
) 

•
 

th
e 

w
ay

s 
ad

ul
ts

 c
ar

e 
fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 

•
 

ba
si

c 
hy

gi
en

e 
ro

ut
in

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 to
ile

tin
g 

an
d 

w
as

hi
ng

 

•
 

dr
es

s 
an

d 
un

dr
es

s 
in

de
pe

nd
en

tly
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

e 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

pe
rs

on
al

 h
yg

ie
ne

 

•
 

de
sc

rib
e 

th
ei

r 
ow

n 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

od
y 

pa
rt

s 

•
 

va
lu

e 
th

ei
r 

bo
dy

, p
hy

si
ca

l a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 

ca
pa

bi
lit

ie
s 

Age 3-5 

•
 

ha
ve

 a
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 th

ei
r 

ow
n 

ne
ed

s,
 v

ie
w

s 

an
d 

fe
el

in
gs

 a
nd

 b
e 

se
ns

iti
ve

 to
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

fe
el

in
gs

 

of
 o

th
er

s 

•
 

so
m

e 
w

ay
s 

of
 b

ei
ng

 a
 g

oo
d 

fr
ie

nd
 

•
 

re
co

gn
is

e 
th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f k

ee
pi

ng
 h

ea
lth

y 
an

d 
th

os
e 

th
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 th

is
  

•
 

re
sp

on
d 

to
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f e
xp

er
ie

nc
es

, s
ho

w
in

g 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 

fe
el

in
gs

 w
he

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 

•
 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
w

he
n 

an
d 

ho
w

 to
 s

ay
 ‘n

o’
 a

nd
 ‘s

to
p’

 

 

S
ci

en
ce

 
C

ur
ric

ul
um

 
•
 

th
at

 a
ni

m
al

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

hu
m

an
s,

 g
ro

w
 a

nd
 r

ep
ro

du
ce

 

•
 

th
at

 h
um

an
s 

an
d 

an
im

al
s 

ca
n 

pr
od

uc
e 

of
fs

pr
in

g 
an

d 
th

es
e 

gr
ow

 in
to

 a
du

lts
 

•
 

re
co

gn
iz

e 
an

d 
co

m
pa

re
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 p
ar

ts
 o

f t
he

 b
od

ie
s 

of
 h

um
an

s 

•
 

re
co

gn
iz

e 
si

m
ila

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

em
se

lv
es

 a
nd

 o
th

er
s 

an
d 

tr
ea

t o
th

er
s 

w
ith

 s
en

si
tiv

ity
 

 

K
no

w
le

dg
e 

(P
S

H
E

) 
S

ki
lls

 (
P

S
H

E
) 

A
tti

tu
de

s 
(P

S
H

E
) 

•
 

ho
w

 s
om

e 
di

se
as

es
 a

re
 s

pr
ea

d 
an

d 
ho

w
 to

 c
on

tr
ol

 th
em

 

•
 

ab
ou

t t
he

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f g

ro
w

in
g 

fr
om

 y
ou

ng
 to

 o
ld

 a
nd

 h
ow

 

pe
op

le
’s

 n
ee

ds
 c

ha
ng

e 

•
 

th
e 

na
m

es
 o

f t
he

 m
ai

n 
ex

te
rn

al
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 b

od
y 

in
cl

ud
in

g 

ag
re

ed
 n

am
es

 fo
r 

se
xu

al
 p

ar
ts

 

•
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

rig
ht

s 
ov

er
 th

ei
r 

ow
n 

bo
dy

 

•
 

re
co

gn
iz

e 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

ho
w

 th
es

e 
ha

ve
 

ch
an

ge
d 

•
 

fo
llo

w
 b

as
ic

 r
ul

es
 fo

r 
ke

ep
in

g 
th

em
se

lv
es

 s
af

e 
an

d 
he

al
th

y 

•
 

va
lu

e 
th

ei
r 

ow
n 

bo
dy

 a
nd

 r
ec

og
ni

se
 

its
 c

ap
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
un

iq
ue

ne
ss

. 

•
 

ho
w

 fa
m

ili
es

 a
re

 s
pe

ci
al

 fo
r 

ca
rin

g 

an
d 

sh
ar

in
g.

 

Age 5-7 

•
 

w
ay

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 th

ey
 a

re
 li

ke
 a

nd
 d

iff
er

en
t f

ro
m

 o
th

er
s 

•
 

th
at

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
so

m
e 

co
nt

ro
l o

ve
r 

th
ei

r 
ac

tio
ns

 a
nd

 b
od

ie
s 

•
 

id
en

tif
y 

an
d 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 ta

lk
 w

ith
 s

om
eo

ne
 th

ey
 tr

us
t 

•
 

be
 a

w
ar

e 
th

at
 th

ei
r 

fe
el

in
gs

 a
nd

 a
ct

io
ns

 h
av

e 
an

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 

ot
he

rs
 

•
 

re
co

gn
iz

e 
si

m
ila

rit
ie

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

em
se

lv
es

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
pe

er
s 

•
 

w
hy

 fa
m

ili
es

 a
re

 s
pe

ci
al

 a
nd

 h
ow

 

th
ey

 c
ar

e 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

th
er

 

11



K
e
y
 S
ta
g
e
 2
 (
Y
e
a
r 
3
/4
/5
/6
) 

S
ci

en
ce

 
C

ur
ric

ul
um

 
•
 

th
at

 th
e 

lif
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
co

m
m

on
 to

 h
um

an
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
an

im
al

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 

•
 

ab
ou

t t
he

 m
ai

n 
st

ag
es

 o
f t

he
 h

um
an

 li
fe

 c
yc

le
 

 

K
no

w
le

dg
e 

(P
S

H
E

) 
S

ki
lls

 (
P

S
H

E
) 

A
tti

tu
de

s 
(P

S
H

E
) 

•
 n

am
e 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
ex

te
rn

al
 p

ar
ts

 o
f t

he
 h

um
an

 b
od

y,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

sc
ie

nt
ifi

c 

na
m

es
 fo

r 
se

xu
al

 p
ar

ts
 

•
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
ph

ys
ic

al
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
m

al
es

 a
nd

 fe
m

al
es

 

•
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
ho

w
 th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

w
ill

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 

•
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 r
eg

ul
ar

 p
er

so
na

l h
yg

ie
ne

 r
ou

tin
es

 
•
 w

ho
 h

as
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 fo
r 

th
ei

r 
pe

rs
on

al
 h

yg
ie

ne
 

an
d 

w
ho

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 

•
 t

he
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
pa

re
nt

s 
ha

ve
 fo

r 
ba

bi
es

 

•
 p

er
ce

pt
io

ns
 o

f b
ei

ng
 ‘g

ro
w

n 
up

’ 

Age 7-9 

•
 c

on
si

de
r 

w
ay

s 
th

ey
 a

ffe
ct

 a
nd

 a
re

 a
ffe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
ei

r 
sp

ec
ia

l p
eo

pl
e 

•
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 li
st

en
 to

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 th
ei

r 
fr

ie
nd

s 
an

d 

m
an

ag
e 

fr
ie

nd
sh

ip
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

•
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 r
ec

og
ni

ze
 u

nw
an

te
d 

ph
ys

ic
al

 c
on

ta
ct

 a
nd

 

w
ay

s 
of

 s
to

pp
in

g 
it 

an
d 

ge
tti

ng
 h

el
p 

•
 b

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 o

th
er

 p
eo

pl
e’

s 
lif

es
ty

le
s 

an
 b

el
ie

fs
 

•
 p

er
so

na
l r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 fo
r 

pe
rs

on
al

 s
af

et
y 

an
d 

be
ha

vi
ou

r 

S
ci

en
ce

 
C

ur
ric

ul
um

 
•
 

th
at

 th
e 

lif
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
co

m
m

on
 to

 h
um

an
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
an

im
al

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
gr

ow
th

 a
nd

 r
ep

ro
du

ct
io

n 

•
 

ab
ou

t t
he

 m
ai

n 
st

ag
es

 o
f t

he
 h

um
an

 li
fe

 c
yc

le
 

 

K
no

w
le

dg
e 

(P
S

H
E

) 
S

ki
lls

 (
P

S
H

E
) 

A
tti

tu
de

s 
(P

S
H

E
) 

•
 t

ha
t b

ac
te

ria
 a

nd
 v

iru
se

s 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

H
IV

) 
ca

n 
af

fe
ct

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

th
at

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
si

m
pl

e 
sa

fe
 r

ou
tin

es
 c

an
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

ei
r 

sp
re

ad
 

•
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 c
ha

ng
es

 th
at

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 a

t p
ub

er
ty

, w
hy

 

th
ey

 h
ap

pe
n 

an
d 

ho
w

 to
 m

an
ag

e 
th

em
 

•
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

at
 p

hy
si

ca
l c

ha
ng

es
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 a
t d

iff
er

en
t r

at
es

 

fo
r 

di
ffe

re
nt

 p
eo

pl
e 

•
 K

no
w

 th
e 

fa
ct

s 
of

 th
e 

hu
m

an
 li

fe
cy

cl
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
se

xu
al

 in
te

rc
ou

rs
e 

•
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

 th
ei

r 
ch

an
gi

ng
 e

m
ot

io
ns

 w
ith

 fr
ie

nd
s 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 a

nd
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 e
xp

re
ss

 th
ei

r 
fe

el
in

gs
 p

os
iti

ve
ly

 

•
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

 a
nd

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
st

er
eo

ty
pe

s,
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
in

 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 g

en
de

r 

•
 r

ec
og

ni
ze

 th
e 

pr
es

su
re

 o
f u

nw
an

te
d 

ph
ys

ic
al

 c
on

ta
ct

, 

an
d 

kn
ow

 w
ay

s 
of

 r
es

is
tin

g 
it.

 

•
 t

he
 d

iv
er

si
ty

 o
f l

ife
st

yl
es

 

•
 o

th
er

s’
 p

oi
nt

s 
of

 v
ie

w
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 th
ei

r 
pa

re
nt

s’
 o

r 
ca

re
rs

  

•
 t

he
 n

ee
d 

fo
r 

tr
us

t a
nd

 lo
ve

 in
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
. 

•
 a

bo
ut

, a
nd

 a
cc

ep
t, 

a 
w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 d
iff

er
en

t f
am

ily
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e 
se

co
nd

 m
ar

ria
ge

s,
 fo

st
er

in
g,

 

ex
te

nd
ed

 fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 th
re

e 
or

 m
or

e 
ge

ne
ra

tio
ns

 li
vi

ng
 

to
ge

th
er

. 

Age 9-11 

•
 t

he
 m

an
y 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 in
 w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 a
re

 in
vo

lv
ed

 

•
 w

he
re

 in
di

vi
du

al
 fa

m
ili

es
 a

nd
 g

ro
up

s 
ca

n 
fin

d 
he

lp
 

•
 a

bo
ut

 k
ee

pi
ng

 th
em

se
lv

es
 s

af
e 

w
he

n 
in

vo
lv

ed
 w

ith
 r

is
ky

 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 

•
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
ho

w
 s

el
f-

co
nf

id
en

ce
 a

nd
 a

ss
er

tiv
en

es
s 

ca
n 

he
lp

 

th
em

 k
ee

p 
th

em
se

lv
es

 s
af

e 

•
 w

ha
t m

ak
es

 a
 h

ea
lth

y 
lif

es
ty

le
, w

ha
t a

ffe
ct

s 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

ho
w

 to
 m

ak
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 c
ho

ic
es

 

•
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

th
er

 p
eo

pl
e’

s 
vi

ew
po

in
ts

 a
nd

 b
el

ie
fs

 

•
 i

de
nt

ify
 a

du
lts

 th
ey

 c
an

 tr
us

t a
nd

 w
ho

 th
ey

 c
an

 a
sk

 fo
r 

he
lp

 

•
 b

e 
se

lf-
co

nf
id

en
t i

n 
a 

w
id

e 
ra

ng
e 

of
 n

ew
 s

itu
at

io
ns

, 

su
ch

 a
s 

se
ek

in
g 

ne
w

 fr
ie

nd
s 

•
 s

ee
 th

in
gs

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 p

eo
pl

e’
s 

vi
ew

po
in

ts
, f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

th
ei

r 
pa

re
nt

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

ca
re

rs
 

•
 l

is
te

n 
to

, s
up

po
rt

 th
ei

r 
fr

ie
nd

s 
an

d 
m

an
ag

e 
fr

ie
nd

sh
ip

 

pr
ob

le
m

s 

•
 w

hy
 b

ei
ng

 d
iff

er
en

t c
an

 p
ro

vo
ke

 b
ul

ly
in

g 
an

d 
w

hy
 th

is
 is

 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 

•
 w

he
n 

it 
is

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 to
 ta

ke
 a

 r
is

k 
an

d 
w

he
n 

to
 s

ay
 n

o 

an
d 

se
ek

 h
el

p 

•
 t

he
 d

iv
er

si
ty

 o
f v

al
ue

s 
an

d 
cu

st
om

s 
in

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
 a

nd
 in

 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

•
 v

al
ue

 th
em

se
lv

es
 a

nd
 id

en
tif

y 
po

si
tiv

e 
th

in
gs

 a
bo

ut
 

th
em

se
lv

es
 

12



 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

CHILDREN AND LIFELONG LEARNING SCRUTINY PANEL Agenda Item 
No. 6 
 

3 DECEMBER 2008 Public Report 
 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services                                 
 
Report Author – Stephen Sutherland, Head of Strategy and Planning 
Contact Details – stephen.sutherland@peterborough.gov.uk  
 

THE ANNUAL REVIEW OF PETERBOROUGH’S CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE PLAN 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
      1.1 To appraise Scrutiny Panel of the review process for Peterborough’s Children and Young People 

Plan (CYPP). 
 
2. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL 

AREA AGREEMENT 
 
 2.1 The Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) state that: “Children’s Trusts must  
  have a central and visible role in implementing, monitoring and refreshing the Local Area  
  Agreements, in a way that is consistent with reviewing and implementing the CYPP. The  
  Children’s Trust will agree, monitor and drive the children and young people elements of the  
  Local Area Agreement, which should, in turn, be wholly consistent with priorities in the CYPP.  
  Both will feed into and deliver the overarching local authority Sustainable Community Strategy.”  
  (Children’s Trust: statutory guidance on inter-agency co-operation to improve well-being of  
  children, young people and their families (2008)). 
 
     2.2 Peterborough’s 2008-2011 CYPP makes explicit reference to Peterborough’s Local Area 

Agreement (LAA), shares its targets, and makes direct reference to the activity that is being 
undertaken to deliver the LAA. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
 3.1 The Children and Young People Plan is a statutory plan which was required by the Children Act  
  2004. There is a statutory requirement to review the plan annually. Many elements of the plan,  
  including the partners who need to be involved, the way the plan is published, and key areas  
  which need to be directly addressed, are mandated through either the Children Act 2004, or  
  subsequent statutory guidance. However, there is still the opportunity for significant local  
  discretion in shaping the plan. 
 
 3.2 The DCSF’s statutory guidance on inter-agency co-operation highlights the role of the CYPP:  
  “The Children and Young People’s Plan continues to be the key document which covers, in one  
  place, all services for families, children and young people within a single strategic and   
  overarching vision of the local area. Children’s Trust partners should be closely involved in its  
  development and ensure their own plans are fully aligned with it. The Children’s Trust should sign 
  off the CYPP, ensure that it is published, refreshed, evaluated and reviewed as necessary, and  
  drive the operating plans which underpin it.” 
 
 3.3 Peterborough’s first statutory Children and Young People Plan (CYPP) was published in April  
  2006 by Peterborough City Council Children’s Services department and its partners in the  
  Children and Young People’s Strategic Partnership. The three-year rolling plan has undergone  
  two subsequent reviews and has been approved by the Children’s Trust, Full Council and PCT  
  Board in April of each year. 
 

15



 2 

 3.4 In 2008, the CYPP served a dual purpose, setting out both the direction and vision for children’s 
  services within the city, but additionally acting as the self-assessment for the purposes of  
  Ofsted’s Annual Performance Assessment of Children’s Services. To meet this dual role, a  
  variety of annexes were produced to the plan containing a significant amount of detail regarding  
  the delivery and planning of services within the city. In total, the CYPP consisted of 8 documents: 
 

• Children and Young People Plan – 30 page overview document 

• Children and Young People Plan Needs Assessment 

• Be Healthy Annex 

• Stay Safe Annex 

• Enjoy and Achieve Annex 

• Make a Positive Contribution Annex 

• Achieve Economic Wellbeing Annex 

• Service Management Annex 
 
 3.5 The 2008 – 2011 Children and Young People Plan outlined ten broad, outcome-focused strategic 
  priority objectives, drawn together following extensive engagement of children and young people 
  and other stakeholders, the outcome of the Annual Performance Assessment (APA) and analysis 
  of data relating to local need, as follows: 
 

• Children and young people are supported to make healthy choices 

• Children and young people have the best possible emotional health 

• Vulnerable children and young people are supported to achieve the best possible outcomes 

• Children and young people have a safe environment to grow up in 

• Children and young people are safeguarded from harm 

• Children and young people have enjoyable learning opportunities 

• Children and young people achieve their potential and succeed emotionally 

• Children and young people are engaged and supported within their communities 

• Children and young people resist engaging in crime and anti-social behaviour 

• All young people have access to appropriate housing 
 
 3.6 Beneath each of these priorities, a number of key areas of focus were identified where specific  
  action was required to improve outcomes. For example, key areas of focus under the first priority 
  ‘healthy choices’ are; Teenage Conceptions and Sexual Health, Obesity, Alcohol Misuse, and  
  Drug Misuse. 
 
 3.7 The CYPP is not a delivery plan. Rather, it identifies key city-wide priorities and sets direction for 
  all partners. The CYPP provides clear links to detailed action plans and strategies for each key  
  area of focus. This may include, for example, detailed LAA action plans, local strategies or  
  business and service plans. This ensures that the CYPP is embedded into service delivery. 
 
 3.8 The CYPP is monitored by the Children’s Trust Partnership Board. Within the CYPP, a total of 85 
  national indicators have been identified which are monitored by both the city council’s Children’s 
  Services and Children’s Trust Partnership Board using the Performance Dashboard. 
 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
 4.1 There is a statutory requirement to conduct an annual review of the CYPP in order to assess  
  progress and consider whether needs have changed. It is expected that the review will be based 
  upon “the best possible data about outcomes and outputs” and involved “consultation with  
  service users, children, young people, and families and carers…” (Guidance on the CYPP 2006) 
 
 4.2 The objectives for the 2009 annual review of the CYPP are as follows: 
 

• To develop and review the needs assessment, ensuring that priorities identified within the 
CYPP are appropriate and reflect the vision for children and young people in Peterborough 

• To ensure that the CYPP is delivered effectively, with links to clear action plans 

• To evaluate the impact of the delivery against the 2008 CYPP 

16



 3 

• To support planning at a locality level by providing clear locality-based information 

• To identify and detail the developments necessary in delivering truly integrated working within 
Peterborough 

• To improve the communication of the CYPP to all stakeholders and, in particular, to children, 
young people and families. 

 
     4.3 The review will need to consider and have regard to the developing national policy agenda. 

Further statutory guidance on the CYPP and the development of Children’s Trusts is expected in 
early 2009, although preparation work to undertake the review will need to commence in the third 
quarter of 2008/09. 

 
 4.4 The DCSF have sought consultation on legislative options for strengthening children’s trusts.  
  These include proposals to extend the ownership of the CYPP to all statutory partners who have 
  a duty to co-operate under the Children Act 2004 (it is currently owned by local authorities). All  
  partners would be legally required to ‘have regard’ to the CYPP. Proposals are also being put  
  forward to strengthen the statutory framework for CYPPs through secondary legislation. This  
  could include requiring CYPPs to explicitly set out arrangements for early intervention and joint  
  commissioning and specify the spend of each partner on areas such as child health and youth  
  offending, and in particular those areas covered by local joint commissioning arrangements. 
 
      4.5 Ofsted have released a consultation on the development of the new inspection framework for 

Children’s Services under the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA), which will begin from 
April 2009. Initial indications are that the CYPP will no longer be required to have the additional 
purpose of acting as a self-assessment for Children’s Services. This, in turn, provides a greater 
flexibility in the format and level of detail contained within the plan. 

 
      4.6 Plans for the review process are currently in development. As part of this process, a ‘lessons 

learnt’ document is being produced and feedback is being sought on the existing plan. As a result 
of the developing national policy framework and feedback received to date, a number of 
developments to the CYPP are being considered: 

 

• Developing a young people’s version of the CYPP in order to improve the communication and 
awareness of the plan amongst young people. 

• Re-viewing the way priorities are highlighted within the CYPP to ensure that there is a clearer 
focus upon the outcomes that need improving and the integrated working that is necessary to 
deliver those improved outcomes 

• Developing clearer links and ownership between the CYPP and the Youth Council 

• Removing six of the Annexes and replacing them with a single, simpler, Annual Report (this is 
possible due to the potentially reduced burden caused by the change from the APA to CAA) 

• Developing the Needs Assessment to include specific profiling of localities and clusters in 
order to strengthen locality-based planning. 

• Strengthening the accountability for outcomes and priorities within the CYPP by detailing 
explicitly which partnership under the Children’s Trust will be responsible for ensuring the 
delivery of improved outcomes against each priority. 

 
5. IMPLICATIONS 
 
  The CYPP is a statutory plan and as such there is a legal requirement to review the plan  
  annually. 
 
6. CONSULTATION 
 
  A range of consultation activities will be undertaken with key stakeholders including children and 
  young people, parents and carers, practitioners and partners.  
 
7. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 
 7.1 This report is presented for information and comment to the panel. 

17



 4 

 
 7.2 The views of the panel are sought on the process for the review of the CYPP; proposals for  
  developments within plan; and how the panel wishes to be involved in the review of the plan. 
 
 7.3 The panel may wish to discuss potential priorities and areas of focus following their review of  
  performance across Children’s Services. 
 
8. NEXT STEPS 
 
  A full plan is being developed for the review of the CYPP. It is anticipated that an initial draft of  
  the plan will be prepared by February 2009, in order to progress through the council and   
  partnership decision making processes. 
 
9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

      9.1 Peterborough’s Children and Young People Plan 2008-2011 
 
10. APPENDICES 
 
    10.1 None. 
 

18



 1 

CHILDREN AND LIFELONG LEARNING SCRUTINY PANEL Agenda Item 
No. 7 
 

3 DECEMBER 2008 Public Report 
 

Report of the Director of Children’s Services                                 
 
Report Author – Marcus Richardson, Head of Performance Management and Information 
Contact Details – marcus.richardson@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

CHILDREN’S TRUST – OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To appraise Scrutiny Panel of the review process for Performance Management and reporting 

within Children’s Services 
 
1.2 To appraise Scrutiny Panel of the critical issues identified by this process. 
 
2. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL 

AREA AGREEMENT 
 
2.1  The Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) states that two of the essential 

features of a Children’s Trust are an outcome-led vision, with a focus on improved outcomes, and  
inter-agency governance, setting a clear framework for strategic planning, resource allocation, 
and accountabilities.  

 
2.2 These two features in particular are underpinned by the robust performance management 

framework which is set out in this document. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The development of an integrated Performance Management Framework is a key activity to 

support the role of the Children’s Trust in monitoring and delivering against key National 
Indicators of performance across the five Every Child Matters outcomes for children and aspects 
of organisational working. 

 

• Be Healthy 

• Stay Safe 

• Enjoy and Achieve 

• Make a Positive Contribution 

• Achieve Economic Wellbeing 

• Service Management 
 
3.2 The framework is developing as a layered approach which meets several needs, including the 

day to day business requirements of Children’s Services, the department’s corporate reporting 
responsibilities and Children’s Trust Partnership (and Greater Peterborough Partnership) 
requirements. 

 
3.3 Performance is determined by a range of national indicators which are monitored by both the city 

council’s Children’s Services department and Children’s Trust Partnership Board using a 
Performance Dashboard (“the Dashboard”). 

 
3.4 Outputs from a monthly data collection process are used to populate the Dashboard across all 

indicators, including, where appropriate, the use of proxy indicators in circumstances where data 
is not  available. 

 

19



 2 

3.5 The performance of each indicator is reported in terms of the latest monthly out-turn alongside  
details of any baseline or target formally set for that indicator. Each indicator is also assigned a 
“RAG rating” (Red / Amber / Green) reflecting the performance of that indicator against target. 

 
3.6 The Dashboard provides a mechanism to inform and shape a regular performance management 

review and provides  
 

• a single repository of performance information which is accessible at all times 
• a tool to assist in the early identification of risks and issues 
• a vehicle to assist in providing challenge and to aid decision making 
• a framework to drive forward continuous improvement 

 
3.7 Outputs from the monthly data collection process are also used to inform the Greater 

Peterborough Partnership’s (GPP) Performance Hub. This is a multi-agency group that has been 
established since April 2008 to review performance information. It is additionally charged with : 

 
• carrying out risk analyses and informing the GPP Executive as appropriate 
• mitigating risk by local action or referral to the GPP Solutions Centre for wider peer review 

 
4. CURRENT PERFORMANCE AND KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 It is intended that the Dashboard be presented to the Panel at it’s meeting on 3 December 2008 

with opportunity for the Panel to discuss and question specific areas of focus and performance. 
 
4.2 In advance of this date, the Panel are advised of a number of critical issues identified through the 

regular performance management review. 
 
4.3       Critical issues are those key themes and indicators deemed to be crucial for the achievement of a      

 3 star rating (or equivalent) for Children’s Services. 
 
4.4 Those issues currently deemed to be critical are presented below : 
 

Issue Owner 

Children with Disabilities Maureen Phillips 

Social Care / Safeguarding Maureen Phillips 

Teenage Conceptions Maureen Phillips 

Diversity Elaine Fulton 

Workforce Development Elaine Fulton 

Joint Commissioning Elaine Fulton 

Obesity Elaine Fulton 

Standards, especially KS1 and KS3 Mel Collins 

CAMHS / Emotional Health Elaine Fulton 

Value for Money Jon Lewis 

Leadership John Richards 

Health Visiting Service Brenda Town 

Integration / Locality Working Maureen Phillips 

Participation of Children in Care Maureen Phillips 

Children’s Trust Arrangements Elaine Fulton 

Business Intelligence (i.e. Performance Management) Elaine Fulton 

Participation rates of vulnerable young people (EET) Maureen Phillips 

Achievement of Level 2 and 3 qualifications at age 19 Mel Collins 

Facilities for young people Maureen Phillips 

 
 
 
 
 
 

20



 3 

 
5.  IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None. 
 
6.  CONSULTATION 
 
6.1 Support materials for the review of Performance Management and reporting within Children’s 

Services are principally aimed at an audience of key stakeholders within organisations charged 
with service delivery and monitoring. 

 
6.2 The Panel can be assured, however, that the outputs from this process have a significant role in 

shaping services for children and young people and in supporting the measurement of the impact 
of those services on children and young people, parents and carers, practitioners and partners.  

 
7.  EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 
7.1 This report is presented for information and comment to the Panel. 
 
7.2 The Panel may wish to discuss specific aspects of performance and potential linkages to the 

review of Peterborough’s Children and Young People Plan (CYPP). 
 
8.  NEXT STEPS 
 
8.1  A formal Performance Management review is undertaken by the Children’s Services Department 

Management Team (DMT) on a monthly basis. It is anticipated that a quarterly presentation is 
made to the panel, commenting on explicitly on critical issues identified by this process. 

 
9.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

9.1 Peterborough’s Children and Young People Plan 2008-2011 
 
10. APPENDICES 
 
10.1 None. 

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



CHILDREN AND LIFELONG LEARNING 
SCRUTINY PANEL 
 

Agenda Item No. 8 

3 DECEMBER 2008 
 

Public Report 

 

Report of the Executive Director of Strategic Resources 
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Performance Scrutiny and Research Officer 
Contact Details – (01733) 452508 or email paulina.ford@peterborough.gov.uk 
 

FEEDBACK AND UPDATE REPORT 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 This report provides feedback on items considered or questions asked at previous meetings of 

the Children and Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Panel.  It also provides an update on matters which 
are of interest to the Panel or where the Panel have asked to be kept informed of progress.   

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Recruitment and Retention in Schools 
 
 During the Panel’s consideration of the Unvalidated Exam Data at its meeting on 22 October 
 2008, Members requested further information on what action was being taken with regard to 
 recruitment and retention in schools. 
 
 A project group has been established and is working with partners and schools in the city and an 
 informal briefing paper giving an update on this project will be sent to members of this panel 
 shortly. 
 
2.2 Total Respect Training 
 
 At a meeting of the Panel on 22 October a group of young people attended to talk about different 
 ways of engaging with young people and were able to tell the panel of their own experiences 
 of being engaged. The panel were informed of training which is offered to all Children’s Services 
 Staff called Total Respect which helps people working with young people understand how they 
 can engage with them. 
 
 The outcomes of this training are that participants will understand: 
 

• Why listening to young people is essential 

• How to communicate with young people 

• Why young people should be treated with respect 

• Why young people should be consulted about decisions that affect them 
 
 The training is facilitated by young people and an invitation will be extended to Members of 
 this panel to attend a training session on 16 February 2009.  The training lasts for 3 hours and 
 can be either a morning or afternoon session. 
 
 The panel is asked to consider which session would be most appropriate to arrange. 
 
2.3 Children’s Trust Board Minutes 
 
 During the Panel’s consideration of the Children’s Trust Arrangements at its meeting on 22 

October 2008, Members requested to receive copies of minutes from the meetings of the 
Children’s Trust Board.  Arrangements have now been made for Members of the Panel to receive 

23



the minutes from each meeting thus keeping them informed of the Trust’s activities.  These will 
be emailed directly to the Members when available. 

 
3. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 
3.1  That the Panel notes the feedback from previous meetings. 
 
4. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 

  
5. APPENDICES 
 
 None   

24



CHILDREN AND LIFELONG LEARNING SCRUTINY PANEL Agenda Item 
No. 9 
 

3 DECEMBER 2008 Public Report 
 

Report of the Executive Director of Strategic Resources                                     
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Performance Scrutiny and Research Officer 
Contact Details - 01733 452508 
 

 
EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to notify the Panel of the Executive Decisions which have been 

taken and which relate to the Panel’s remit. 
 
2. LINKS TO CORPORATE PLAN, SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL 

AREA AGREEMENT 
 
2.1 Links to the Corporate Plan, Sustainable Community Strategy and Local Area Agreement are 

contained within the individual decisions notices. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Appointment of LEA Governor to Woodston Primary School 

 Decision 

To appoint Mr Jonathan Symon nominated by the governing body. 

Reasons 

The resignation of Mr David Tyler on 1 September 2008. 
 

3.2 Appointment of LEA Governor to West Town Primary School 

 Decision 

To appoint Catherine Honeyford nominated by the School. 

Reasons 

The resignation of Mr Graham Flew on 23 July 2008. 
 

3.3 Appointment of LEA Governor to Discovery Primary School 

Decision 

To appoint Mrs Betty Fowler nominated by the governing body. 

Reasons 

Vacancy due to the formation of a permanent governing body. 
 

3.4 Promotion of Play 

 Decision 

The Cabinet members are asked; 
§ to approve the allocation of Pathfinder funding across the Authority in line with 

appendix A (available on request). 

25



§ to approve the application for Pathfinder status and Bretton Park as the site for the 
Adventure Playground. 

§ to agree to proceed with the consultation on the staffed play centres based on the 
objectives agreed with the Children and Life Long Learning  and Community 
Development Scrutiny Panels in September 2008 and to remodel the service 
based on the objectives below and the consultation process.   

These objectives are; 

• To ensure access to play for all children across the city. 

• To target resources on those areas in the city where outcomes are the 
poorest. 

• To support parents and communities in developing play resources.  

Reasons 

Playbuilders is a Department of Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) initiative to promote 
improved play opportunities. The City Council was one of 43 authorities which were awarded 
funding for this purpose. Peterborough will receive £1.1 m for 22 play sites across the authority 
at £50,000 per site. The allocation of sites will reflect a needs analysis. The implementation of 
the playbuilders scheme will be managed through the Children and Families Service, which is 
linked to clusters of schools.   
 
The recommended allocation of playbuilder sites reflect a fair and equitable distribution of sites 
across the city, backed up by a management infra-structure which can ensure implementation of 
the initiative within the tight timescale. 
 
There is a further opportunity for the City Council to apply for play pathfinder status. This is also 
a DCSF initiative to support play but seeking innovative approaches towards promoting play. 
This will include £1.2m revenue and funding of £800,000 for an adventure playground or play 
park. The preference is for Bretton Park to be the site for the Pathfinder adventure playground, 
based on reasons of sustainability, accessibility and links to wider regeneration initiatives.   
 

 There is a need to review the management of the play centres, recognising that the present 
system does not respond to the objectives agreed with the scrutiny panel.  

 
3.5 Schools Broadband Contract 

 Decision 

This decision includes an exempt annex which is NOT FOR PUBLICATION in accordance with paragraph 
3 of Schedule 12A to Part 1 of the Local Government Act 1972 in that it contains information relating to 
financial/business affairs, namely, details of the bids received, bidders names and the funding details.  
The public interest test has been applied to the information that is contained in the Exempt Annex to this 
Decision Notice and it is considered that the need to retain this information as exempt outweighs the 
public interest in it because to disclose it could compromise the Council's position in any future 
procurement for these services.   

  
Authority to award Schools Broadband Contract to Updata Infrastructure UK Limited for a term of 
seven years commencing on 1st April 2009 and ending on March 31st 2016 for the provision of a 
Managed Service Broadband Network to Peterborough City Council schools.  
 
The services offered will include all communications and networking links and equipment, 
maintenance, support and management of the network and the provision of management 
information  

Reasons 

Following a number of clarification sessions and revised proposals, Updata Infrastructure UK 
Limited was identified as the preferred supplier, as it demonstrated that it was most responsive to 
requests and provided the most clarity in its responses to questions. 
 
Updata Infrastructure UK Limited not only performed better when presenting its proposal, its 
proposal was also deemed to present a lesser risk in terms of hidden costs, such as BT open 

26



reach excess charges, and it had very strong recommendations from existing schools clients 
relating to its flexibility, quality of service provision and its working relationship with schools. 
 
Updata Infrastructure UK Limited also compared favourably to the other shortlisted supplier in 
terms of costs. 
 
To summarise Updata Infrastructure UK Limited was selected because it: 
a) Offered best value for money 
b) Showed and demonstrated significant experience with schools 
c) Offered greater clarity around costs 
d) Excellent recommendations from its existing suppliers 

 
4. IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 Any specific implications are contained within the individual decision notices. 
 
5. EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 
5.1 The Panel is asked to consider the Executive Decisions which are relevant to the remit of the 

Panel and which have been made since the last meeting and if felt appropriate, to identify any 
decisions they may wish to examine in more detail. 

 
6 BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 
1985 

  
 Executive Decision notices from 22 September 2008. 
 

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



CHILDREN AND LIFELONG LEARNING SCRUTINY PANEL Agenda Item 
No. 10 
 

3 DECEMBER 2008 Public Report 
 

Report of the Executive Director of Strategic Resources                                   
 
Report Author – Paulina Ford, Performance Scrutiny and Research Officer 
Contact Details – 01733 452508 
 
FORWARD PLAN – 1 DECEMBER 2008 TO 31 MARCH 2009 

 
1. PURPOSE 
 
 For the Panel to note the latest version of the Forward Plan; agree any areas for inclusion 
 within the Panel’s work programme and submit any observations concerning the Plan to  the 
 Executive. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 

This is a regular report to the Children’s and Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Panel, outlining the 
content of the Council’s Forward Plan. 

 
3. KEY ISSUES 
 
3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan is attached at Appendix A.  The Plan contains those key 

decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Member(s) will be making over the next four months. 

 
3.2 The Panel may wish to include some of the items highlighted on the Plan onto their future work 

programme or to request additional information from the Executive before a decision is made.  
Any comments about the format of the Plan would also be welcomed.   

 
3.3 In accordance with the Council’s Executive procedure rules, the Cabinet or Cabinet Member will 

not make any key decision until at least five clear days after the receipt of the report relating to 
that decision.  The Group representatives of the Scrutiny Committee are sent a copy of these 
reports at the same time as the Cabinet Member and any comments can be passed onto the 
Member before a decision is made. 

 
4.  EXPECTED OUTCOMES 
 
4.1 That the Panel notes the latest version of the Forward Plan; agrees any areas for inclusion within 
 the Panel’s work programme and submits any observations concerning the Plan to the 
 Executive. 
 
5.  NEXT STEPS 
 
5.1 Areas agreed by the Panel to be included in the work programme and observations submitted to 
 the Executive. 
 
6.  BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

 Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
  

 Peterborough City Council’s Forward Plan for 1 December 2008 to 31 March 2009 
 
7. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix A Forward Plan 1 December 2008 to 31 March 2009 

29



30

This page is intentionally left blank



     
      

P
E

T
E

R
B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 C
IT

Y
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

’S
 F

O
R

W
A

R
D

 P
L
A

N
 

  

1
  D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 2

0
0
8
 T

O
 3

1
 M

A
R

C
H

 2
0
0
9
 

APPENDIX A 

31



 

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 P

L
A

N
 O

F
 K

E
Y

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 –

 1
 D

E
C

E
M

B
E
R

 2
0
0
8
 T

O
 3

1
 M

A
R

C
H

 2
0
0
9
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  A

B
 

 
D
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 f
ro
m
 1
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 t
o
 3
1
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
0
9
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 i
n
te
n
d
s
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
n
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
b
e
lo
w
. 
 

K
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 r
e
la
te
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
p
e
n
d
in
g
 o
r 
s
a
v
in
g
 m
o
n
e
y
 i
n
 e
x
c
e
s
s
 o
f 
£
5
0
0
,0
0
0
 a
n
d
/o
r 
h
a
v
e
 a
 

s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
w
o
 o
r 
m
o
re
 w
a
rd
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 T
h
is
 F
o
rw
a
rd
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
e
n
 a
s
 a
n
 o
u
tl
in
e
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 o
n
 a
 m
o
n
th
ly
 b
a
s
is
. 
 T
h
e
 d
a
te
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 a
re
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
te
m
s
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 o
r 
id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 m
o
re
 t
h
a
n
 o
n
e
 m
o
n
th
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
v
e
r 
to
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 p
la
n
s
. 
 E
a
c
h
 n
e
w
 

p
la
n
 s
u
p
e
rs
e
d
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
re
v
io
u
s
 p
la
n
. 
 A
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
 w
h
ic
h
 a
p
p
e
a
rs
 a
t 
th
e
 b
a
c
k
 o
f 
th
e
 

P
la
n
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 t
o
 L
in
d
s
a
y
 T
o
m
lin
s
o
n
, 
G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r,
 C
h
ie
f 
E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t,
 T
o
w
n
 H
a
ll,
 B
ri
d
g
e
 S
tr
e
e
t,
 P
E
1
 1
H
G
 (
fa
x
 0
1
7
3
3
 

4
5
2
4
8
3
).
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
ly
, 
y
o
u
 c
a
n
 s
u
b
m
it
 y
o
u
r 
v
ie
w
s
 v
ia
 e
-m
a
il 
to
 l
in
d
s
a
y
.t
o
m
lin
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 o
r 
b
y
 t
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
 o
n
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
2
3
8
. 

 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
v
it
e
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
th
e
 p
u
b
lic
 t
o
 a
tt
e
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
f 
th
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
s
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 d
is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p
a
p
e
rs
 l
is
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 P
la
n
 c
a
n
 b
e
 

v
ie
w
e
d
 f
re
e
 o
f 
c
h
a
rg
e
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
 p
o
s
ta
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
 c
h
a
rg
e
 f
o
r 
a
n
y
 c
o
p
ie
s
 m
a
d
e
. 
A
ll 
d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
o
s
te
d
 o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 w
e
b
s
it
e
: 

w
w
w
.p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
. 
  
If
 y
o
u
 w
is
h
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
r 
re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 t
h
e
 'k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
' 
o
u
tl
in
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is
 P
la
n
, 
p
le
a
s
e
 s
u
b
m
it
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm
 a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
. 
 F
o
r 
y
o
u
r 
in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
th
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
d
e
ta
ils
 f
o
r 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il'
s
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
 a
re
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
d
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
is
 p
la
n
. 

 
 N
E
W
 I
T
E
M
S
 T
H
IS
 M
O
N
T
H
: 

•
 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

•
 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 R
e
g
is
te
r 
a
n
d
 A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 P
o
lic
y
 

•
 
E
c
o
h
u
t 
P
ro
je
c
t 

•
 
V
e
n
d
o
r 
N
e
u
tr
a
l 
S
o
lu
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
P
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
A
g
e
n
c
y
 S
ta
ff
 

 

          

32



 

 

 
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 -
 K

E
Y

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

 K
E
Y
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 D
A

T
E
 O

F
 

D
E
C

IS
IO

N
 

D
E
C

IS
IO

N
 M

A
K

E
R

  
C

O
N

S
U

L
T
A

T
IO

N
 

 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T
 D

E
T
A

IL
S
 /
 R

E
P
O

R
T
 

A
U

T
H

O
R

S
 

R
E
P
O

R
T
S
 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

0
6
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

O
b
li
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
  

T
o
 a
p
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

O
b
lig
a
ti
o
n
s
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
 

 T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

fu
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 
fo
r 
e
n
d
o
rs
e
m
e
n
t 

E
x
te
n
s
iv
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

in
v
o
lv
in
g
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 m
e
m
b
e
r 

fo
ru
m
s
. 

G
ra
e
m
e
 L
a
w
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G
ro
w
th
 &
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
2
5
 

g
ra
e
m
e
.l
a
w
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

M
o
v
in

g
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 
A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
d
u
lt
 s
o
c
ia
l 

c
a
re
 t
o
 b
e
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 f
u
tu
re
 

p
ro
v
id
e
r 
m
o
d
e
l 
o
f 
th
e
 P
C
T
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

  

P
u
b
lic
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
  
to
o
k
 

p
la
c
e
 i
n
 2
0
0
7
; 
H
A
S
C
 t
o
 

b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 a
n
d
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

D
e
n
is
e
 R
a
d
le
y
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r 
o
f 
A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

0
1
7
3
3
 7
5
8
4
4
4
 

d
e
n
is
e
.r
a
d
le
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P
la

n
 t
o
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

D
ra
ft
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
fo
r 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

a
n
d
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 t
o
 b
e
 

a
g
re
e
d
 a
s
 a
 b
a
s
is
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 w
ill
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 D
ra
ft
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 

A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 

C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t.
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

 
R
e
p
o
rt
 f
o
rm
s
 t
h
e
 b
a
s
is
 o
f 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 
p
ri
o
r 
to
 

fu
rt
h
e
r 
c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 b
y
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
0
9
 

a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

e
n
d
o
rs
e
m
e
n
t 
a
t 
fu
ll 

C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

J
o
h
n
 B
la
ir
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

jo
h
n
.b
la
ir
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

33



 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 T

a
x
 B

a
s
e
  

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 t
h
e
 c
a
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
 o
f 

th
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
x
 b
a
s
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1
0
  

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
d
v
ic
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 L
e
g
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
 N
o
 

fo
rm
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 

ta
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 

 

J
o
h
n
 B
la
ir
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

jo
h
n
.b
la
ir
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
S
tr

a
te

g
y
  

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 a
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
ti
n
g
 a
 C
u
lt
u
ra
l 

V
is
io
n
, 
S
p
o
rt
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 

L
ib
ra
ry
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

H
e
ri
ta
g
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
b
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

 T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

fu
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
a
n
e
l 

K
e
v
in
 T
ig
h
e
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
a
n
d
 N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
8
4
 

k
e
v
in
.t
ig
h
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

   

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

R
e
g
is

te
r 
a
n
d
 A

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
o
li
c
y
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

R
e
g
is
te
r 
a
n
d
 A
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

P
o
lic
y
: 
U
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta
b
le
 

b
e
h
a
v
io
u
r 
–
 c
la
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
n
 

re
n
t 
a
rr
e
a
rs
; 
T
ra
n
s
fe
r 

a
p
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
; 
R
e
fu
s
a
l 
o
f 

o
ff
e
rs
  
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

 T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

fu
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
h
o
ic
e
 

B
a
s
e
d
 L
e
tt
in
g
s
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 G
ro
u
p
; 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
h
o
ic
e
 

B
a
s
e
d
 L
e
tt
in
g
s
 B
o
a
rd
; 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 P
a
n
e
l 

 

A
d
ri
a
n
 C
h
a
p
m
a
n
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
N
e
ig
h
b
o
u
rh
o
o
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
8
7
 

a
d
ri
a
n
.c
h
a
p
m
a
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

   

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 4

4
 I
n
p
u
t 
to

 
R

e
g
io

n
a
l 
S
p
a
ti
a
l 
S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

(R
S
S
) 
R

e
v
ie

w
 

T
o
 g
iv
e
 a
d
v
ic
e
 t
o
 E
a
s
t 
o
f 

E
n
g
la
n
d
 R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
A
s
s
e
m
b
ly
 

o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 

R
e
g
io
n
a
l 
S
p
a
ti
a
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 

2
0
3
1
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n
d
 R

e
g
io

n
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
, 
C

o
u
n
c
il
lo

r 
C

o
ll
in

s
 a

n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

M
e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
, 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo

r 
M

u
rp

h
y
 

E
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 k
e
y
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

n
e
ig
h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 
la
n
d
 a
g
e
n
ts
 

a
n
d
 c
h
a
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

c
o
m
m
e
rc
e
 

R
o
b
 B
ro
w
n
 

A
re
a
 S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
9
5
 

ro
b
e
rt
.b
ro
w
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

34



 

E
c
o
h
u
t 
P
ro

je
c
t 

T
o
 g
iv
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 

p
a
rt
n
e
r 
(t
h
e
 F
o
re
s
tr
y
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
) 
to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
th
e
 

p
ro
je
c
t 
to
 c
re
a
te
 a
 f
a
m
ily
 

w
o
o
d
la
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

re
c
re
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn
in
g
 

p
u
rp
o
s
e
s
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 C

o
u
n
c
il
lo

r 
S
c
o
tt

 

U
ff
o
rd
 P
a
ri
s
h
 C
o
u
n
c
il;
 

C
a
m
b
ri
d
g
e
s
h
ir
e
 

C
o
n
s
ta
b
u
la
ry
; 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il;
 N
a
tu
ra
l 

N
e
tw
o
rk
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
, 

G
re
a
te
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
; 
J
o
h
n
 C
la
re
 

C
o
u
n
tr
y
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

  

D
a
rr
e
n
 S
h
a
rp
e
 

N
a
tu
ra
l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
T
e
a
m
 L
e
a
d
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
5
9
6
 

d
a
rr
e
n
.s
h
a
rp
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

    

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

R
iv

e
rs

id
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
p
o
rt

s
 P

a
v
il
io

n
 

T
o
 a
p
p
o
in
t 
a
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
to
 

b
u
ild
 t
h
e
 R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
p
o
rt
s
 P
a
v
ili
o
n
. 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 C

o
u
n
c
il
lo

r 
S
c
o
tt

 
  

R
iv
e
rs
id
e
 R
e
s
id
e
n
ts
’ 

A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
, 
w
a
rd
 

c
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 a
n
d
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 

u
s
e
r 
g
ro
u
p
s
. 
  

P
a
u
l 
S
te
v
e
n
e
tt
e
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
2
4
7
5
 

p
a
u
l.
s
te
v
e
n
e
tt
e
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

S
c
h
e
d
u
le

 o
f 
R

a
te

s
 f
o
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
C

iv
il
 E

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g
 

W
o
rk

s
 2

0
0
8
 –

 2
0
1
0
 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 a
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
r 

fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 
th
e
 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
s
m
a
ll 
a
n
d
 

m
e
d
iu
m
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 L
o
c
a
l 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 C

o
u
n
c
il
lo

r 
S
c
o
tt

 
  

In
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
. 

S
tu
a
rt
 M
o
u
n
fi
e
ld
 

S
e
n
io
r 
E
n
g
in
e
e
r 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
5
9
8
 

s
tu
a
rt
.m
o
u
n
fi
e
ld
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

N
e
n
e
 B

ri
d
g
e
 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 

T
o
 a
w
a
rd
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
fo
r 

re
fu
rb
is
h
m
e
n
t 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 C

o
u
n
c
il
lo

r 
S
c
o
tt

 
  

A
ll 
u
ti
lit
y
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
, 

N
e
tw
o
rk
 R
a
il,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y
, 

in
te
rn
a
l 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
, 

e
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt
 g
ro
u
p
s
. 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 C
ra
n
w
e
ll 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 T
e
a
m
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 4
5
3
5
0
4
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.c
ra
n
w
e
ll@

p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

35



 

F
u
tu

re
 o

f 
P
e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
 (
P
P
D

C
) 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

fu
tu
re
 u
ti
lis
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 s
it
e
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 c
o
u
n
c
il 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 C

o
u
n
c
il
lo

r 
S
c
o
tt

 
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

W
a
rd
 C
o
u
n
c
ill
o
rs
 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 H
o
d
g
s
o
n
  

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
je
c
ts
 

T
e
l.
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
3
5
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
.h
o
d
g
s
o
n
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

V
e
n
d
o
r 

N
e
u
tr

a
l 
S
o
lu

ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

P
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 

S
ta

ff
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 a
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 a
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
r 
fo
r 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

s
ta
ff
  

 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t,
 C

o
u
n
c
il
lo

r 
S
c
o
tt

 

D
e
ta
ils
 a
w
a
it
e
d
 

C
h
ri
s
 B
e
rr
y
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

T
e
l:
 0
7
9
7
6
 6
1
9
9
0
6
 

c
h
ri
s
to
p
h
e
r.
b
e
rr
y
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

36



 

  

 
J
A

N
U

A
R

Y
 -
 K

E
Y

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

 K
E
Y
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 D
A

T
E
 O

F
 

D
E
C

IS
IO

N
 

D
E
C

IS
IO

N
 M

A
K

E
R

  
C

O
N

S
U

L
T
A

T
IO

N
 

 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T
 D

E
T
A

IL
S
 /
 R

E
P
O

R
T
 

A
U

T
H

O
R

S
 

R
E
P
O

R
T
S
 

T
o
u
ri

s
t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

T
o
 d
e
te
rm
in
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
s
 f
o
r 
to
u
ri
s
t 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

C
o
u
n
c
il
lo

r 
L
e
e
 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 

p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
s
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

s
ta
ff
, 
tr
a
d
e
s
 u
n
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

P
a
n
e
l 

 

L
in
d
a
 W
ill
s
 

T
o
u
ri
s
m
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
8
3
5
 

lin
d
a
.w
ill
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

   

37



 

    

 
F
E

B
R

U
A

R
Y

 -
 K

E
Y

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

 K
E
Y
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 D
A

T
E
 O

F
 

D
E
C

IS
IO

N
 

D
E
C

IS
IO

N
 M

A
K

E
R

  
C

O
N

S
U

L
T
A

T
IO

N
 

 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T
 D

E
T
A

IL
S
 /
 R

E
P
O

R
T
 

A
U

T
H

O
R

S
 

R
E
P
O

R
T
S
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 

M
e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P
la

n
 t
o
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 

T
o
 a
g
re
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 

c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 p
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 r
u
le
s
. 

T
h
is
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 C
a
p
it
a
l 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
, 
th
e
 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
, 
th
e
 A
d
u
lt
 

S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 C
h
a
rg
in
g
 P
o
lic
y
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 D
ra
ft
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 A
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
it
y
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
a
n
d
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 T
ru
s
t 

 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

 T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 a
n
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

fu
ll 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
h
is
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 f
o
llo
w
s
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w
it
h
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 

d
ra
ft
 M
T
F
S
, 
p
re
s
e
n
te
d
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r.
 

J
o
h
n
 B
la
ir
 

H
e
a
d
 o
f 
S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
c
e
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 3
8
4
5
6
4
 

jo
h
n
.b
la
ir
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

 

R
e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
(L

A
A

) 
 

T
o
 s
ig
n
 o
ff
 t
h
e
 r
e
fr
e
s
h
e
d
 

L
A
A
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 i
ts
 s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 

to
 t
h
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
O
ff
ic
e
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

L
e
a
d
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
fo

r 
F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 
C

o
u
n
c
il
lo

r 
P
e
a
c
h
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 f
o
ra
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

R
ic
h
a
rd
 A
s
tl
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 G
re
a
te
r 
P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
5
0
4
2
 

ri
c
h
a
rd
@
g
p
p
-p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.o
rg
.u
k
 

 

P
u
b
lic
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
ill
 

b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 O
ff
ic
e
r 

o
n
e
 w
e
e
k
 b
e
fo
re
 

th
e
 d
e
c
is
io
n
 i
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

38



 

 
M

A
R

C
H

 -
 K

E
Y

 D
E

C
IS

IO
N

S
 

 K
E
Y
 D

E
C

IS
IO

N
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
D

 D
A

T
E
 O

F
 

D
E
C

IS
IO

N
 

D
E
C

IS
IO

N
 M

A
K

E
R

  
C

O
N

S
U

L
T
A

T
IO

N
 

 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T
 D

E
T
A

IL
S
 /
 R

E
P
O

R
T
 

A
U

T
H

O
R

S
 

R
E
P
O

R
T
S
 

 
T
h
e
re
 a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 n
o
 k
e
y
 d
e
c
is
io
n
s
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
d
 f
o
r 
M
a
rc
h
. 

 

39



 

   C
H

IE
F
 E

X
E
C

U
T
IV

E
'S

 D
E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
  
T
o
w

n
 H

a
ll
, 
B

ri
d
g
e
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 P

e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
, 
P
E

1
 1

H
G

 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 G
ro
w
th
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

L
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 D
e
m
o
c
ra
ti
c
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

H
u
m
a
n
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

P
o
lic
y
 a
n
d
 R
e
s
e
a
rc
h
 

E
c
o
n
o
m
ic
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

D
ru
g
 I
n
te
rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 D
ru
g
 a
n
d
 A
lc
o
h
o
l 
T
e
a
m
 

 C
IT

Y
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 D
E

P
A

R
T
M

E
N

T
  
N

u
rs

e
ry

 L
a
n
e
, 
F
e
n
g
a
te

, 
P

e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
  
P
E

1
 5

B
G

 

P
ro
p
e
rt
y
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
ild
in
g
 &
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

S
tr
e
e
ts
c
e
n
e
 a
n
d
 F
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 S
T
R

A
T
E
G

IC
 R

E
S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
  
D

ir
e
c
to

r'
s
 O

ff
ic

e
 a

t 
T
o
w

n
 H

a
ll
, 
B

ri
d
g
e
 S

tr
e
e
t,
 P

e
te

rb
o
ro

u
g
h
, 
P
E

1
 1

H
G

 

F
in
a
n
c
e
 

In
te
rn
a
l 
A
u
d
it
  

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 T
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
y
 (
IC
T
) 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 P
ro
p
e
rt
y
  

C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
S
’ 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
  
B

a
y
a
rd

 P
la

c
e
, 
B

ro
a
d
w

a
y
, 
P
E
1
 1

F
B

 

F
a
m
ili
e
s
 a
n
d
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

40



 

 O
P
E
R

A
T
IO

N
S
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
  
B

ri
d
g
e
 H

o
u
s
e
, 
T
o
w

n
 B

ri
d
g
e
, 
P

E
1
 1

H
B

 

 P
la
n
n
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

B
u
ild
in
g
 C
o
n
tr
o
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
a
n
d
 P
u
b
lic
 P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

C
u
lt
u
ra
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 E
n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

E
m
e
rg
e
n
c
y
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 

O
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

C
it
y
 C
e
n
tr
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

41



42

This page is intentionally left blank



 
C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
 A
N
D
 L
IF
E
L
O
N
G
 L
E
A
R
N
IN
G
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
 

 
A
G
E
N
D
A
 P
L
A
N
 2
0
0
8
 –
 2
0
0
9
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 –
 2
4
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

1
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

It
e
m
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
is
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 d
o
) 

It
e
m
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 b
y
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
T
e
rm

s
 o
f 

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

W
e
rr
in
g
to
n
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
 

p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
n
 i
ts
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
C
o
u
n
c
il.
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
M
e
l 
C
o
ll
in
s
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 r
e
v
ie
w
 a
n
y
 i
s
s
u
e
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 

c
o
n
s
id
e
rs
 

a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 S
c
h
o
o
l 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
y
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 P
S
H
E
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
G
a
y
n
o
r 
M
a
n
s
e
ll
 

C
h
a
ir
 

P
o
lic
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 i
n
it
ia
te
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
 

th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 P
o
lic
y
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

T
o
 b
e
 f
u
lly
 a
p
p
ra
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
e
 P
S
H
E
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

 

T
o
 g
iv
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 P
S
H
E
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
P
ri
m
a
ry
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
–
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

th
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t.
  

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 E
la
in
e
 F
u
lt
o
n
 /
 

M
a
rc
u
s
 R
ic
h
a
rd
s
o
n
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
re
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

a
n
d
 s
a
fe
. 

T
o
 b
e
 f
u
lly
 a
p
p
ra
is
e
d
 o
f 
th
e
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 T
ru
s
t 
T
a
rg
e
ts
 a
n
d
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
. 

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 h
o
w
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

T
ru
s
t 
is
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 h
o
w
 i
t 
m
e
e
ts
 

g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
ts
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

3
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
 

D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

1
7
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

F
in
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt
  
2
4
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

E
A
R
L
Y
 C
O
N
S
ID
E
R
A
T
IO
N
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 P
la
n
 

T
o
 g
iv
e
 e
a
rl
y
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 

P
la
n
. 

  
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
E
la
in
e
 F
u
lt
o
n
 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 

P
o
lic
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 i
n
it
ia
te
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
 

th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 P
o
lic
y
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 

o
f 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

43



 
C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
 A
N
D
 L
IF
E
L
O
N
G
 L
E
A
R
N
IN
G
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
 

 
A
G
E
N
D
A
 P
L
A
N
 2
0
0
8
 –
 2
0
0
9
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 –
 2
4
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

2
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

It
e
m
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
is
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 d
o
) 

It
e
m
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 b
y
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
T
e
rm

s
 o
f 

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 d
ra
ft
 B
u
d
g
e
t 
a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
2
0
0
9
/1
0
. 
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
h
n
 H
a
rr
is
o
n
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 

P
o
lic
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 

th
e
 a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
n
d
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
te
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

. 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

A
d
u
lt
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 &
 S
k
il
ls
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 

A
d
u
lt
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 &
 S
k
ill
s
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 i
ts
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 b
y
 

th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
. 
  
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
M
e
l 
C
o
ll
in
s
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

P
o
lic
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 i
n
it
ia
te
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
 

th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 P
o
lic
y
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

1
4
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

2
0
0
9
 

D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

2
9
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

F
in
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt
  
5
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry
 

  

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
H
e
a
lt
h
 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
w
it
h
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

u
p
d
a
te
 o
f 
th
e
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
p
o
s
it
io
n
 o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w
o
rk
 t
h
a
t 
is
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 t
o
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 s
u
rp
lu
s
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
re
 h
e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

44



 
C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
 A
N
D
 L
IF
E
L
O
N
G
 L
E
A
R
N
IN
G
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
 

 
A
G
E
N
D
A
 P
L
A
N
 2
0
0
8
 –
 2
0
0
9
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 –
 2
4
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

3
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

It
e
m
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
is
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 d
o
) 

It
e
m
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 b
y
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
T
e
rm

s
 o
f 

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

 
A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

o
n
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 a
re
 e
x
c
lu
d
e
d
 f
ro
m
 s
c
h
o
o
l 

o
r 
o
th
e
rw
is
e
 w
it
h
o
u
t 
a
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la
c
e
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
P
a
u
l 
C
o
p
p
in
g
 /
 

T
ri
c
ia
 K
e
o
g
h
 

C
h
a
ir
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

Is
s
u
e
 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
re
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 

T
o
 b
e
 f
u
lly
 a
p
p
ra
is
e
d
 o
f 
C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 A
lt
e
rn
a
ti
v
e
 P
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 

Y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
. 

 

T
o
 s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 h
o
w
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 i
s
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 h
o
w
 i
t 

m
e
e
ts
 t
h
is
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 l
in
e
 w
it
h
 

th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
W
h
it
e
 P
a
p
e
r 
–
 

B
a
c
k
 o
n
 T
ra
c
k
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 P
la
n
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 

P
la
n
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 i
ts
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
E
la
in
e
 F
u
lt
o
n
 

 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 

P
o
lic
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 i
n
it
ia
te
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
 

th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 P
o
lic
y
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

4
 M

a
rc
h
 

2
0
0
9
 

D
ra
ft
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

1
6
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

F
in
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt
  
2
3
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 P
la
n
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 d
ra
ft
 

Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 P
la
n
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 i
ts
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 b
y
 t
h
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
B
o
b
 F
o
o
te
r 

 

C
o
n
s
ti
tu
ti
o
n
 

P
o
lic
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 i
n
it
ia
te
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
 

th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 P
o
lic
y
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

45



 
C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
 A
N
D
 L
IF
E
L
O
N
G
 L
E
A
R
N
IN
G
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
 

 
A
G
E
N
D
A
 P
L
A
N
 2
0
0
8
 –
 2
0
0
9
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 –
 2
4
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

4
 

D
a
te
 o
f 

M
e
e
ti
n
g
 

It
e
m
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
is
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 d
o
) 

It
e
m
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 b
y
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
T
e
rm

s
 o
f 

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 –
 V
a
li
d
a
te
d
 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 2
0
0
8
 e
x
a
m
in
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 

fr
o
m
 t
h
e
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S
ta
g
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
o
 

K
e
y
 S
ta
g
e
 5
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
M
e
l 
C
o
ll
in
s
 

P
a
n
e
l 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
re
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 C
h
il
d
re
n
 w
it
h
 D
is
a
b
il
it
ie
s
 

p
ro
je
c
t 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 

to
 t
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
o
n
 t
h
e
 I
n
te
g
ra
te
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
 

w
it
h
 D
is
a
b
ili
ti
e
s
 p
ro
je
c
t 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
 M

a
u
re
e
n
 P
h
il
li
p
s
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

Is
s
u
e
 

 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
re
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

a
n
d
 s
a
fe
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

C
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
1
6
-1
9
 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 T
ra
in
in
g
 

T
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 t
h
e
 p
a
n
e
l 
w
it
h
 a
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 

to
 t
h
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 t
ra
in
in
g
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 
1
6
 –
 1
9
 y
e
a
r 

o
ld
s
. 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
M
e
l 
C
o
ll
in
s
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

P
o
lic
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 i
n
it
ia
te
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
 

th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 P
o
lic
y
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

    

46



 
C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
 A
N
D
 L
IF
E
L
O
N
G
 L
E
A
R
N
IN
G
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
 

 
A
G
E
N
D
A
 P
L
A
N
 2
0
0
8
 –
 2
0
0
9
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 –
 2
4
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

5
 

 In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
te
m
s
 t
o
 b
e
 s
e
n
t 
o
u
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 m

e
m
b
e
rs
 o
f 
P
a
n
e
l.
  
N
o
t 
fo
r 
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 a
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 
 A
n
y
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
e
n
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
ta
c
t 
o
ff
ic
e
r 
re
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
. 

It
e
m
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

D
a
te
 /
 R
e
g
u
la
ri
ty
 

M
e
th
o
d
 o
f 
D
e
li
v
e
ry
 

C
h
il
d
re
n
’s
 S
o
c
ia
l 
C
a
re
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 –
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 

M
a
u
re
e
n
 P
h
il
li
p
s
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r 
F
a
m
il
y
 a
n
d
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
  

T
e
l:
  
0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
0
2
  

E
m
a
il:
 

m
a
u
re
e
n
.p
h
ill
ip
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

B
i 
M
o
n
th
ly
 

 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
/ 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 /
 M
a
rc
h
 /
 M
a
y
 

/ 
J
u
ly
 /
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

 

 

A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
/E
x
c
lu
s
io
n
 F
ig
u
re
s
  

 

M
e
la
n
ie
 C
o
ll
in
s
 /
 T
ri
c
ia
 K
e
o
g
h
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 &
 S
k
il
ls
  

T
e
l:
 0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
7
3
0
  

E
m
a
il:
 

m
e
la
n
ie
.c
o
lli
n
s
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

B
ia
n
n
u
a
l 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
/ 
M
a
y
 

  

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 F
o
ru
m
 r
e
p
o
rt
 o
n
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 

J
o
n
a
th
a
n
 L
e
w
is
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 

T
e
l:
  
0
1
7
3
3
 8
6
3
9
1
2
 

E
m
a
il:
 

jo
n
a
th
a
n
.l
e
w
is
@
p
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
.g
o
v
.u
k
 

B
i 
M
o
n
th
ly
  

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
/ 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 /
 M
a
rc
h
 /
 M
a
y
 

/ 
J
u
ly
 /
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

 

 

 T
y
p
e
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 A
c
ti
v
it
y
 C
a
te
g
o
ri
e
s
: 

 H
o
ld
in
g
 t
o
 A
c
c
o
u
n
t 

P
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

P
o
lic
y
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
E
x
te
rn
a
l 
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 R
e
v
ie
w
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 I
s
s
u
e
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 
T
ra
in
in
g
 

 R
E
L
E
V
A
N
T
 I
T
E
M
S
 F
R
O
M
 M

A
J
O
R
 P
O
L
IC
Y
 F
R
A
M
E
W
O
R
K
 A
N
D
 L
O
C
A
L
 C
H
O
IC
E
 T
O
 B
E
 C
O
N
S
ID
E
R
E
D
 U
N
D
E
R
 T
H
E
 R
E
M
IT
 O
F
 C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
 A
N
D
 

L
IF
E
L
O
N
G
 L
E
A
R
N
IN
G
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
 

47



 
C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
 A
N
D
 L
IF
E
L
O
N
G
 L
E
A
R
N
IN
G
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
 

 
A
G
E
N
D
A
 P
L
A
N
 2
0
0
8
 –
 2
0
0
9
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 –
 2
4
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

6
 

 P
la
n
s
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 u
n
d
e
r 
s
ta
tu
to
ry
 g
u
id
a
n
c
e
  

 (a
) 
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
  

(e
) 
Y
o
u
th
 J
u
s
ti
c
e
 P
la
n
  

 P
O
S
S
IB
L
E
 I
T
E
M
S
 F
O
R
 I
N
C
L
U
S
IO
N
 W

IT
H
IN
 T
H
E
 W

O
R
K
 P
R
O
G
R
A
M
M
E
 F
O
R
 2
0
0
8
/0
9
 

 
It
e
m
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
is
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 d
o
) 

  

A
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
 

S
c
h
e
d
u
li
n
g
 

d
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 b
y
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
T
e
rm

s
 o
f 

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 A
p
p
e
a
ls
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 A
d
m
is
s
io
n
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
 

U
p
d
a
te
 R
e
p
o
rt
 

J
. 
L
e
w
is
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 

C
h
a
ir
 

. 
P
o
lic
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

In
te
g
ra
te
d
 P
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 (
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 

C
o
n
ta
c
tP
o
in
t)
 

T
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
n
d
 c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 P
e
te
rb
o
ro
u
g
h
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 

C
o
n
ta
c
tp
o
in
t,
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 

c
o
m
m
o
n
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
fr
a
m
e
w
o
rk
 (
C
A
F
) 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
E
la
in
e
 F
u
lt
o
n
 

J
u
n
e
 2
0
0
9
 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

. 
P
o
lic
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

s
ta
tu
to
ry
 d
u
ty
 t
o
 

im
p
le
m
e
n
t 
in
te
g
ra
te
d
 

p
ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 

P
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 B
u
s
h
fi
e
ld
 A
c
a
d
e
m
y
 

T
o
 p
re
s
e
n
t 
a
n
 o
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
h
o
w
 t
h
e
 

a
c
a
d
e
m
y
 w
ill
 w
o
rk
 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
E
ri
c
 W

in
s
to
n
e
 /
 M
e
l 

C
o
ll
in
s
 

J
u
n
e
 0
9
 

C
h
a
ir
 

G
e
n
e
ra
l 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

Is
s
u
e
 

 

T
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 

h
ig
h
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 f
o
r 

le
a
rn
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
s
u
re
 

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

48



 
C
H
IL
D
R
E
N
 A
N
D
 L
IF
E
L
O
N
G
 L
E
A
R
N
IN
G
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 P
A
N
E
L
 

 
A
G
E
N
D
A
 P
L
A
N
 2
0
0
8
 –
 2
0
0
9
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
L
a
s
t 
U
p
d
a
te
d
 –
 2
4
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
0
8
 

 

7
 

It
e
m
 

(i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
 P
a
n
e
l 
is
 

re
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 d
o
) 

  

A
p
p
ro
x
im

a
te
 

S
c
h
e
d
u
li
n
g
 

d
a
te
 

 

It
e
m
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 b
y
 

T
y
p
e
 o
f 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 

R
e
le
v
a
n
t 
T
e
rm

s
 o
f 

R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

E
x
p
e
c
te
d
 O
u
tc
o
m
e
 

c
h
ild
re
n
 a
re
 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 

a
n
d
 s
a
fe
. 

 

N
e
w
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 

T
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 

o
f 
th
e
 U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
. 

  
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r:
  
L
in
d
a
 J
o
n
e
s
 

T
.B
.A
 

L
a
s
t 
re
p
o
rt
 

re
c
e
iv
e
d
 

2
3
/7
/0
8
 

C
h
a
ir
 

P
o
lic
y
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

T
o
 i
n
it
ia
te
, 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 

p
o
lic
ie
s
 a
n
d
 a
d
v
is
e
 

th
e
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 a
b
o
u
t 

th
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 P
o
lic
y
 

F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 

Id
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
n
y
 a
re
a
s
 o
f 

c
o
n
c
e
rn
 

V
u
ln
e
ra
b
le
 G
ro
u
p
s
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

C
a
re
rs
 

 

M
a
u
re
e
n
 P
h
il
li
p
s
 

T
.B
.A
. 

 
 

 
 

             

49



50

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 22 October 2008
	4 Werrington Primary School Council
	5 National Healthy Schools Programme
	081203 - C&LLSP - National Healthy Schools Programme Appendix A

	6 The Annual Review of Peterborough's Children and Young People Plan
	7 Children's Trust - Overview of Performance
	8 Feedback and Update Report
	9 Executive Decisions
	10 Forward Plan of Key Decisions
	081203 - C&LLSP - Forward Plan Appendix A

	11 Work Programme

